
All topics on the Agenda are potential Action Items.  

The Library will provide reasonable aids or services to afford an individual with a disability an equal opportunity to participate in all services, programs and facilities. Persons requiring assistance 
should notify Library of their needs well in advance to provide sufficient time to make an accommodation. Contact Library Administration at 847-825-3123, TTY 847-825-8217. 

Park Ridge Public Library  
Regular Board Meeting – AGENDA – January 17, 2023 – 7:00 PM  

Meeting Location: 
Park Ridge City Hall Council Chambers, 505 Butler Place, Park Ridge, IL 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment on Non-agenda items

4. Consent Agenda

* Items listed below are considered routine by the Library Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no discussion

of these items unless a Board member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from consent for further discussion

immediately after the Consent Agenda is approved.

a. Approval of Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Regular Meeting of the Library Board

b. Ratify Bills Payable-Warrant Register for:

Period 12, December 16, 2022  Period 12, December 31, 2022 

Library Fund Warrants  $90,688.02 Library Fund Warrants  $72,085.17 

Payroll (12/02/2022) $85,692.18 Payroll (12/30/2022) $82,536.05 

Payroll (12/16/2022) $87,374.30 n/a n/a 

     Per Capita Grant Fund $0.00 Per Capita Grant Fund $0.00 

     North Suburban Digital Consortium $2,830.63 North Suburban Digital Consortium $4,755.58 

     Total  $266,585.13 Total    $159,376.80 

c. Approve Cash Statement for all accounts for December 2022

d. Approve a request to the Bruce A. Michel Trust for $21,862 for the purchase of technology equipment to upgrade the

first floor meeting room, third floor meeting room, Media Lab and Marketing office.

e. Approve revisions, as amended, to the Meeting Room policy and rescind the Grand Piano Policy.

5. Treasurer’s Report

a. Approve the Consolidated Year to Date Revenue and Expenditures Report for December 2022

6. President’s Report

7. Secretary’s Report

8. Library Director's Report

a. Statistics

b. Narrative

9. Friends of the Library Report

10. Unfinished Business

11. New Business

a. Approve revisions to the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees Park Ridge Public Library

12. Adjournment

1



MINUTES 

PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

20 S. Prospect Avenue, Park Ridge, IL 60068 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Held in Park Ridge City Hall Council Chambers – 505 Butler Place, Park Ridge, IL  

December 20, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. 

Regular Board Meeting  
12.20.22 

Page 1 of 4 

CALL TO ORDER 
President Hanba called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 
Trustees Present: Alexandrea Hanba, President; Josh Kiem, Vice-President; Danielle Powers, Secretary; 

Lauren Rapisand, Theresa Renaldi, Gregg Rusk, David Somheil, Treasurer; Joseph 
Steinfels 

Trustees Present 
via Phone: Deepika Thiagarajan 

Others Present: Joanna Bertucci, Library Director; Angela Berger, Lauren Bochat, Alyson Doubek and 
Laura Scott, Library staff 

APPROVAL OF REMOTE ATTENDANCE 
As Trustee Thiagarajan is attending the meeting remotely, it is necessary that a vote be taken to approve this 
remote attendance. President Hanba asked the reason for remote attendance and Trustee Thiagarajan stated 
that she is calling into the meeting because she is ill. There being no objection,  

Vice-President Kiem made a  
MOTION: to approve the remote attendance of Trustee Thiagarajan  
Trustee Steinfels seconded the motion.  
Roll Call Vote: Yes: Hanba, Kiem, Powers, Rapisand, Renaldi, Rusk, Somheil, Steinfels 
Motion passed 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
President Hanba asked if there were comments on non-agenda items.  No comments were made. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
President Hanba stated that if a trustee(s) would like an item removed from Consent, the item will be removed 
for further discussion after the Consent Agenda is approved.  Trustee Rapisand requested that approval of the 
December 13, 2022 Board minutes be removed from Consent as she was not in attendance at that meeting. 

The following items are now included on the Consent Agenda:  

 Approval of Minutes of the November 15, 2022 Regular Meeting of the Library Board

 Ratify Bills Payable Warrant Register for Period 11, FY22 November 15, 2022 in the amount of
$264,445.60 and November 30, 2022 in the amount of $144,180.72

 Approve Cash Statement for all accounts for November, 2022

 Ratify disbursements from the Petty Cash Fund, $32.12

 Approve a budget transfer in the FY22 Operating Budget for a $3,200 decrease to General Counsel
and a $3,200 decrease to Library Consulting and an increase of $6,400 to the Admin. Library Data
Processing Services budget line.

Return to Agenda

2



MINUTES 

PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

20 S. Prospect Avenue, Park Ridge, IL 60068 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Held in Park Ridge City Hall Council Chambers – 505 Butler Place, Park Ridge, IL  

December 20, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. 

Regular Board Meeting  
12.20.22 

Page 2 of 4 

 Approve a budget transfer in the FY22 Operating Budget for a $20,000 decrease to Administration
Salaries and a $13,000 decrease to Employee Benefits HMO and an increase of $33,000 to the
Employee Benefits PPO budget line.

 Approve a budget transfer in the FY22 Operating Budget for a $2,750 decrease to Conferences and
Training and an increase of $2,250 to the Public Relations Newsletter and $500 increase to the
Postage budget line.

 Approve a budget transfer in the FY22 Operating Budget for a $2,000 decrease to Youth Services
Fiction and an increase of $2,000 increase to the Youth Services Nonfiction budget line.

 Approve that the Board of Trustees of the Park Ridge Public Library authorize Joanna Bertucci, Library
Director to act on behalf of the Library Board in all matters relating to application for authorization,
including signing of all services relating to the Estate of Stanley Malinowski.

 Approve a contract with Weblinx, Inc. for website design, development, hosting, maintenance, and
security not to exceed $35,000

 Approve extension of the “Illness at the Workplace (COVID19) for Library Staff” policy through March
31, 2023

 Approve the FY23 Per Capita Grant application

Vice-President Kiem made a 
MOTION: To approve the Consent Agenda, as revised 
Trustee Powers seconded the motion 
Roll Call Vote:   Yes:  Hanba, Kiem, Powers, Rapisand, Renaldi, Rusk, Somheil, Steinfels, Thiagarajan 
Motion passed 

President Hanba made a 
MOTION: To approve the Minutes of the December 13, 2022 Special Meeting of the Library Board 
Trustee Somheil seconded the motion 
Roll Call Vote:  Yes:  Hanba, Kiem, Powers, Renaldi, Rusk, Somheil, Steinfels, Thiagarajan 

Abstain:  Rapisand 
Motion passed 

TREASURER’S REPORT 
Treasurer Somheil reviewed the Consolidated YTD Revenue and Expenditures report for November, 2022 
noting that with 92% of the year being reported, Operating expenditures are at 81% of budget.  Also noted 
was that total expenditures, including Capital, are at 74% of YTD budgeted amounts, as several Capital projects 
remain in progress.  Spending of the Capital Budget line is at 31% YTD.   He further noted that as expected, no 
property tax receipts have occurred due to the delay in issuance and due date for tax bills 

Treasurer Somheil made a 
MOTION: To approve the Consolidated Year to Date Revenue and Expenditures Report for November, 
2022 
Trustee Rusk seconded the motion 
Roll Call Vote:   Yes:  Hanba, Kiem, Powers, Rapisand, Renaldi, Rusk, Somheil, Steinfels, Thiagarajan 
Motion passed 

3



MINUTES 

PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

20 S. Prospect Avenue, Park Ridge, IL 60068 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Held in Park Ridge City Hall Council Chambers – 505 Butler Place, Park Ridge, IL  

December 20, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. 

Regular Board Meeting  
12.20.22 

Page 3 of 4 

Trustee Steinfels asked if there is any concern with regard to the timing of tax receipts to which Director 
Bertucci replied that there is not as it was expected and the Library’s Fund Balance is adequate to maintain 
operations during this delay.   

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
President Hanba directed the Board’s attention to page 52 in the packet where the 2023 Schedule of Library 
Board of Trustee meeting calendar is included.  She noted that there are two dates in 2023, February 21, 2023 
and June 20, 2023, where the Library Board meeting will be held at the Library rather than at City Hall.  This is 
due to the one day delay in the standard timing for the City Council meeting due to the federal holidays 
occurring on Monday of those respective weeks.   

She then thanked the Board, Library Director and Library staff for a great year in 2022 and said that she is 
looking forward to 2023.   

SECRETARY’S REPORT 
Secretary Powers reviewed the Secretary’s report included in the packet on page 53, noting both Library 
website news items and articles appearing in the press.  

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Director Bertucci highlighted items from her written report beginning on page 54 of the packet. 

 The Live and Learn Grant application is substantially complete and will be filed with the Illinois State
Library by the end of this week, well in advance of the filing deadline.  She noted her appreciation for
the assistance received from Andy Dogan with completing the application.

 Director Bertucci, along with several Library staff members, attended the Friends of the Library annual
meeting on December 14, 2022. Director Bertucci noted that the Friends approved the entire funding
request of $15,000.  She thanked the Friends for their support and looks forward to the ongoing
partnership

 The new Loft service desk was installed in late November and is providing staff with a much needed
space to better serve patrons, including a section of the desk that is ADA accessible.

 Carey Electric was onsite last week to install new snow and moisture sensors on the roof.  They will
return for testing of the system as snowfall permits.

 With regard to the expected winter storm predicted for later this week, Director Bertucci noted that
she is monitoring weather reports to assess the best course of action with regard to Library
operations.  In the event that an emergency closure is advisable, she will contact President Hanba to
discuss.

 Finally, Director Bertucci noted that usage statistics for the Media Lab reached an all- time high during
the month of November.

 With regard to the Statistics reported on page 61, Director Bertucci noted that as we approach year
end, although not all usage stats have returned to pre-pandemic levels, there are some positive trends
being realized and it is her expectation that this will continue as the Library moves into 2023.  She
further noted that due to the early timing of the January, 2023 COW meetings (January 10th) the
comparative statistical review and discussion that was planned for January will be postponed until
February, 2023 to allow staff the time to gather statistics and conduct a thorough analysis for
presentation to the Board.

4



MINUTES 

PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

20 S. Prospect Avenue, Park Ridge, IL 60068 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Held in Park Ridge City Hall Council Chambers – 505 Butler Place, Park Ridge, IL  

December 20, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. 

Regular Board Meeting  
12.20.22 

Page 4 of 4 

FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY REPORT 
None  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None 

NEW BUSINESS 
Trustee Rusk noted that he received a social media post from the City of Park Ridge stating that the Library is a 
warming center.  Director Bertucci replied that when the Library is open, it is considered a warming center 
but that does not extend to hours when the Library is closed either as a result of regular operating hours or 
an emergency closure.   

Trustee Rapisand asked if the Library has been contacted by the local school districts in regard to some social 
media and blog posts questioning the appropriateness of certain materials included in collections.  Director 
Bertucci replied that she has not received any direct contact regarding this matter.  She stated that she is 
aware of an anonymous blog that questions some materials in the collection.  She further stated that she 
respects the blogger’s right to express their opinion as she also respects freedom of expression for the authors 
of the titles being questioned.   

Trustee Rusk asked if the City Council had voted to approve the 2022 Tax Levy to which Director Bertucci 
replied that the approval occurred at the Council’s December 19, 2022 meeting.   

Secretary Powers made a 
MOTION: To adjourn the meeting 
Trustee Steinfels seconded the motion 
Voice Vote: All in favor 
Motion passed 

President Hanba adjourned the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 

5

 



Library Fund

CHASE

3,042,351$    

Internal Operating Fund

LIBRARY PETTY CASH FUND

Liberty Bank - Primary use to reimburse lost/paid patron fees 426$    

CASH ON HAND

530$    

Gift Fund

RESTRICTED GIFT FUND INVESTED FUNDS

BMO Harris - Opened when Liberty Gift Fund reached maximum balance 125,513$    

LIBRARY RESTRICTED GIFT FUND

Liberty Bank - Donations (not necessarily with spending restriction) 192,803$    

Endowment Fund

SPENSLEY LARGE PRINT ENDOWMENT

Library Funds $10,000 are a part of Chase Operating -$    

ENDOWMENT FUND  INVESTED FUNDS   

Parkway Bank CD -  Principal invested for 24 months.  160,444$    

Trust

*BRUCE MICHEL LIBRARY TRUST

Northern Trust - Technology Upgrades 205,953$    

*The Bruce Michel Library Trust funds are held at Northern Trust.  The funds are earmarked for 

technology upgrades throughout the library.  Requests for expenditure must be approved by

Mr. Bruce Michel's widow and are disbursed by Northern Trust.  The balance in this account is 

reported as of September 30, 2022; based on our quarterly account statement from Northern Trust.

Cash Statement

Calendar Year 22 - January, 2022 through December, 2022

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22

Cash Balance Breakout
Operations Reserve vs. Capital Funds AvaIlable

Capital Restriction

Capital Funds Avaliable

Operations Cash
Balance

Months of Operations
Reserve

Return to Agenda

6



Approval for payment from Gift Fund:
No Checks Written

Ratify Disbursements from Petty Cash Account:

No Checks Written

Park Ridge Public Library
Ratification and Approval of Disbursements/Payments

December, 2022

Return to Agenda

7



Memorandum 

Memo Date: January 6, 2023 
From: Joanna Bertucci 
Meeting Type: Budget and Finance Committee 
Meeting Date: January 10, 2023 

Action Requested: For approval 
Subject: Michel Trust disbursement request 

Background: 
The Bruce A. Michel Trust was established to “keep the Park Ridge Public Library up to date with technology.” The 
Library received the $250,000 Trust in 1998 and began using funds in the early 2000s. The Trust provided start-up 
funds for the Library’s eBook program, allowing the Park Ridge Public Library to be the first public library in Illinois to 
offer its patrons downloadable eBooks. Besides eBooks and other digital media, the Trust has provided funds for 
digital resources for both adults and children as well as software and equipment for the Media Lab and The Studio, 
continuing to fulfill the purpose of the Trust established by Mr. Michel.  

The Library has worked with our IT vendor, CVI, to procure quotes for the specified technology items and they will 
facilitate the ordering and purchasing of these items on our behalf.  CVI will also install and provide ongoing support 
for all new equipment.  

Recommended Motion: 
1. To approve a request to the Bruce A. Michel Trust for $21,862 for the purchase of technology equipment to

upgrade the first floor meeting room, third floor meeting room, Media Lab and Marketing office.

Attachment: 
1. Draft request to Bruce A. Michel Trust administrator
2. Quotes for proposed purchases

Return to Agenda

8



January 18, 2023 

Josette Hunt 
The Northern Trust Company 
50 South LaSalle Street 
Chicago, IL 60603 

Dear Ms. Hunt: 

In order to continue to provide the patrons and staff of the Park Ridge Public with access to cutting edge 
technology, I am writing to request funds from the Bruce A. Michel Trust for the procurement of new 
technology equipment in four areas of the Library.  

Over the past year, the Management Team has been evaluating our technology offerings with regard to the 
useful and serviceable life of equipment and the new ways in which patrons are using their Library. During the 
height of the COVID-19 pandemic, Library patrons were supported remotely through virtual programs and 
services. In early 2022, attendance limits in library spaces and programs were eliminated. However, some 
patrons strongly prefer our virtual Library programs. We have also seen a resurgence in usage in our Media 
Lab, with over 100 hours of patron usage, our highest ever, in December 2022. The following four requests 
would greatly enhance our programs and services as well as patrons’ experiences.  

Our request for $21,862 includes the purchase of the following items in four areas of the Library.  

1) First Floor Meeting Room audiovisual equipment upgrades
The Library’s first floor meeting room hosts the majority of our Library programs, many of which need cutting
edge technology support.  Last year, we welcomed over 4,600 adult patrons attending film screenings,
musical concerts, and other live performances. Our current audiovisual offerings, which include a projector,
microphone and speaker system have reached the end of their useful life and are no longer performing
optimally. In order to continue to host the quality programming our patrons expect and deserve, we have
worked with our IT contractor to develop a plan to upgrade our technology offerings for this space.
Project Cost:   $7,577

2) Third Floor Meeting Room audiovisual equipment upgrade
The Library’s third floor meeting room hosts smaller library programs and is available for use by members of
the public and Library staff.   In order to make this meeting room more versatile for programs and meetings
we would like to install a 75” smart TV, which would allow users to display digital presentations and host
digital meetings.
75” Smart TV $  900 
Wall Mount adapter  $  100 
Project Cost: $1,000 

3) Media Lab Computer equipment upgrade
Thanks to generous funding from the Bruce A. Michel Trust, the Library has had a Media Lab since 2015. The
Media Lab provides cardholders with access to equipment and software to create media presentations,
transfer media, and scan photos/documents.  Due to the nature of the projects our patrons undertake in this

9



space, it is of the utmost importance that our technology offerings be up to date.  At this time, the Mac 
(Apple) computer dedicated to this space is in need of replacement as its operating system can no longer be 
updated.   We have worked with our IT firm to specify the Apple components needed as well as a new 
scanner and necessary software licenses to bring our Media Lab equipment up to date. 

   Project Cost: $4,350 

4) Marketing Office equipment upgrades
Our marketing office staff have been extending our engagement reach through social media outlets and our
website, attempting to connect with patrons where they are.   Additionally, we have been working with the
City of Park Ridge to display our quarterly program posters in kiosks located in the community to expand our
reach.  We have been using a 3rd party printer to print this signage and would benefit from having an in-house
large format printer.
Apple Computer $5,005 
HP DesignJet T730 printer & installation: $3,130 
Printer ink  $   800 
Total Project Cost  $8,935 

In recognition of your incredibly meaningful support, the following recognition would be included in all 
promotional and informational materials about these upgrades and would also be prominently displayed in 
the physical space itself: 

Technology generously provided by the Bruce A. Michel Library Trust 

Please contact me should you have any questions about this request. Thank you for your 
consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Joanna Bertucci 
Library Director 

10



Computer View, Inc. 
2777 Finley Road
Suite 13
Downers Grove, Illinois 60515
United States
http://www.cview.net
(P) 847-290-9286
(F) 847-290-9602

Date
Aug 26, 2022 09:55 AM CDT

Modified Date
Sep 13, 2022 03:28 PM CDT

Quotation  (Open)

Quote # 
202492  - rev 1 of 1

Description
Meeting Room A/V Upgrade

SalesRep
Poluchowicz,  Roxy 
(P) 847-290-9286  ext. 114
(F) 847-290-9602

Customer Contact
Bertucci,  Joanna 
(P) (847) 720-3203
jbertucci@parkridgelibrary.org

Customer 
Park Ridge Public
Library (PR0003) 
Bertucci, Joanna
20 South Prospect Avenue
Park Ridge, IL 60068-4188
United States
(P) 847-825-3123
(F) 847-825-0001

Bill To 
Park Ridge Public Library
Bertucci, Joanna
20 South Prospect Avenue
Park Ridge, IL 60068-4188
United States
(P) (847) 720-3203
jbertucci@parkridgelibrary.org

Ship To 
Park Ridge Public Library
Bertucci, Joanna
20 South Prospect Avenue
Park Ridge, IL 60068-4188
United States
(P) (847) 720-3203
jbertucci@parkridgelibrary.org

Customer PO: Terms:
Undefined

Ship Via:
UPS Ground

Special Instructions: Carrier Account #:

# Description Part # Qty Unit Price Total

Meeting Room A/V Upgrade

1  Epson PowerLite L530U 
3LCD projector - 5200 lumens (white) - 5200 lumens (color) - WUXGA (1920 x 1200) - 16:10 - 1080p - 802.11n
wireless / LAN / Miracast 

V11HA27020 1 $2,599.00 $2,599.00 

2  Epson ELPMBPJG Universal 
Mounting kit (ceiling mount) - for projector - ceiling mountable - for Epson EX5280, Pro EX7280, Pro EX9240;
PowerLite L520, L530, L630, L635, L730, L735 

V12H808001 1 $116.00 $116.00 

3  50FT C2G PERFORMANCE SERIES HIGH SPEED H C2G41484 1 $228.00 $228.00 

4  75FT C2G PERFORMANCE SERIES HIGH SPEED H C2G41485 1 $274.00 $274.00 

5  C2G 75ft 3.5mm Stereo Audio Cable with Low Profile Connectors M/M  
Plenum CMP-Rated - Audio cable - stereo mini jack male to stereo mini jack male - 75 ft - shielded - black 

40522 1 $51.00 $51.00 

6  C2G Value Series 6in Value Series One 3.5mm Stereo Female To Two RCA Stereo Male Y-Cable
Audio adapter - RCA male to stereo mini jack female - shielded - black 

40424 1 $4.00 $4.00 

7  C2G USB Wall Charger 
AC to USB Charger - 5V 2A Output - Power adapter - 2 A (USB) - black 

22335 2 $13.00 $26.00 

8  C2G 6ft USB C to USB Cable 
USB C 2.0 to USB A Cable - M/M - USB cable - USB-C (M) to USB (M) - USB 2.0 - 6 ft - molded - black 

28871 2 $8.00 $16.00 

9  Shure Wireless Lavalier Microphone System - H9 Band BLX14R/W85 2 $519.00 $1,038.00 

10 Shure Wireless handheld Microphone System - H10 Band BLX24R/SM58 1 $439.00 $439.00 

11 Panasonic DP-UB420 HDR 4K UHD Network Blu-ray Player DP-UB420-K 1 $249.00 $249.00 

11

https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M022554234
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M013239693
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M023887364
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M023887366
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M005637375
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M004579714
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M012156227
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M014646331


12 C2G Ceiling Speaker 
2x2 Drop In Ceiling Speaker - Plenum Rated - Speaker - for PA system - 12 Watt - white 

41508 6 $130.00 $780.00 

13 C2G 18 AWG Plenum-Rated Bulk Shielded Speaker Wire  
Bulk speaker cable - 250 ft - shielded - white 

29206 2 $139.00 $278.00 

14 Installation / configuration INST 1 $1,440.00 $1,440.00 

# Description Part # Qty Unit Price Total

Thank you for choosing Computer View Inc. Please sign, date and FAX or
email this form to order. The quote is good for 20 days.

These prices DO NOT include applicable taxes, insurance, shipping, delivery,
setup fees, or any cables or cabling services or material unless specifically
listed above. All prices are subject to change without notice. Supply subject to
availability.

Subtotal: $7,538.00
Shipping: $39.00

Total: $7,577.00

12

https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M016971634
https://usm.channelonline.com/cview/email/Products/overview/M007760255


Memorandum 

Memo Date: January 3, 2023 
From: Joanna Bertucci  
Meeting Type: Planning & Operations Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Meeting Date: January 10, 2023 
Action Requested: For review and approval  
Subject:  Policy review  

Background:  
The Library’s Meeting Room Policy was brought to the Board in February 2022.  At that time, the revisions clarified 
priorities for use of the rooms, allowed nonprofit groups the ability to use a Library meeting room once a month and for 
profit groups every 3 months. 

Since this update, the Business Office has noted a shift in the nature of requests for meeting space, particularly from 
nonprofit groups including local Girl Scout and Boy Scout troops. We believe this shift to be a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, more specifically patrons looking for space outside their homes to host meetings.  We have had 4-5 troops 
inquire about using the space but were dissuaded by the $35 fee.  For nonprofit groups, even this nominal fee can pose a 
hardship, particularly if they wish to meet multiple times during the year.   

At this time, I respectfully request that the Board consider eliminating the $35 fee for nonprofit groups wishing to use the 
third floor meeting room, only.  The room can accommodate up to 20 individuals and does not require staff time as the 
room setup does not change.  

In 2022, we had 8 total groups use the third floor meeting room, 4 for profit and 4 nonprofit groups.  Our Mission 
Statement calls for the Library to offer opportunities for patrons “to connect” and offering this space to nonprofits, free 
of charge, has the potential to bring people into the Library to use a space that is to some degree, underused.   

Additionally, I suggest that the Board incorporate the Grand Piano Policy into the Meeting Room Policy, consistent with 
our efforts to streamline the Policy Manual.  

Recommended Action: 
1) Based on discussion and possible updates at the January 10, 2023 Committee of the Whole meeting, I

respectfully recommend that the Board approve revisions to the Meeting Room Policy and rescind the
Grand Piano Policy at the January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting:

Return to Agenda

13



MEETING ROOMS 

POLICY:  

The Park Ridge Public Library has two meeting rooms available to support the Library’s mission, 
vision and strategic plan.  When not in use for Library activities, these rooms may be made 
available for use by the public. 

In keeping with the American Library Association's Library Bill of Rights, the Park Ridge Public 
Library makes “meeting rooms available to the public on an equitable bases, regardless of race, 
color, creed, beliefs or affiliation of individual or groups requesting their use.”   

Meeting room space may be made available “to organizations engaged in educational, cultural, 
intellectual, charitable, advocacy, civic, religious, or political activities.” In allowing use of Library 
meeting rooms, neither the Library nor its Board of Trustees endorse the position expressed by 
any group using the Library’s meeting rooms.  

RULES: 

1. Priorities for use of the meeting rooms are as follows:

a. Library-sponsored meetings or programs

b. Library-related meetings or programs, such as by the Friends of the Park Ridge
Library or Library professional development or networking events.

c. Meetings sponsored by agencies of the City of Park Ridge, including Boards and
Commissions.

d. Not for profit organizations conducting meetings or programs.

e. Businesses conducting meetings or hosting programs where no fees are charged
and no goods or services are sold.

2. Applicants by separate agreement shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Board
of Library Trustees of the City of Park Ridge, the members of the City Council of the City
of Park Ridge, and their respective officers, agents and employees from and against any
and all claims, demands, causes of action and liabilities, including all costs and reasonable
attorneys’ fees arising from and related to the applicant’s use of the Park Ridge Public
Library’s meeting rooms and other facilities.

3. All meetings not sponsored by the Library must be free of charge. No admission fee
shall be charged, or donations collected, for programs presented in the Library.

4. Organizations may request that meetings be closed to the general public. However, all
meetings will be open to the Library Director and staff. This does not obligate the group
or organization to notify the public of the meeting or to specify in any publicity that it is
open to the public.

5. Programs involving the sale, advertising, or promotion of commercial products or services
are prohibited. Workshops or seminars on financial, higher education, estate, or retirement

14



planning and related topics are considered commercial ventures and therefore, 
sponsoring groups or individuals will not be permitted to use the meeting rooms. 

6. The use of rooms for hosting private events of a strictly social nature is prohibited.

7. The person making the reservation shall be responsible for any damage. The cost of
damage will be determined by the Library Director.

8. No group or individual may reassign the use of the room to another group or individual.
The representative must sign the application and be present for the entire meeting.

9. The use of the meeting rooms shall not interfere with the normal operations of the
Library, such as causing excessive noise, a significant safety hazard, or security risk.

10. The Library is not responsible for equipment, supplies, materials or any personal
possessions owned by those sponsoring or attending meetings held at the Library. The
Library does not provide porter services for groups meeting in the building or storage
space for their property.

11. The Library reserves the right to change a scheduled meeting date which conflicts with
Library sponsored programs. The Library will contact the appropriate individual as early
as possible to arrange rescheduling. The Library accepts no responsibility for any meeting-
related expenses.

12. Publicity is the responsibility of groups booking meeting rooms. Groups must provide
and produce their own publicity. Groups must be identified on all publicity as sponsoring
the meeting. Wording must appear on all publicity for meetings in the meeting rooms as
follows: “This is not a Library-sponsored event. Except for providing meeting space, the
Park Ridge Public Library is not in any manner connected with this meeting, and neither
the Library nor the Board of Trustees endorses any position expressed by the group.”

13. With the exception of the Friends of the Library, organizations meeting in the Library shall
not use the Library’s mailing address or telephone number to conduct their business.

14. Light refreshments (beverages, cookies, cake or snacks) may be served in the First Floor
Meeting Room subject to the approval of the Library Director or their designee. Major food
preparation is not permitted. There is a $20.00 fee, payable in advance, for the privilege
of serving food. Organizations/patrons are asked to avoid serving items that are likely to
stain furniture or carpeting.

15. Individual, covered beverages may be brought to the Third Floor Meeting Room; however,
no food or beverages may be served.

16. The Library’s meeting rooms may be used for political activities related to an election, in
conformance with City Ordinances, until one hundred days prior to the election, except for
municipal or township election activities. Municipal or township election activities may be
held until the petition filing deadline, which is seventy-one days before the election. After
these deadlines, the meeting rooms may only be used for candidate forums when the
following conditions are met:

15



a. All candidates are invited to attend.

b. The forum is sponsored by a non-partisan group.

c. Candidates for a particular office must agree in writing to attend the forum or indicate
in writing that they do not oppose the forum being held even though they are unable
to attend.

17. Groups of persons under eighteen years of age must be accompanied by a responsible
adult.

18. For the safety of our patrons, only Library staff members are allowed to rearrange or set
up equipment and furnishings. Additional equipment may not be brought into the Library
without permission from the Library Director or their designee. Such items include but are
not limited to additional lighting, risers, and sound systems.

19. The PRPL Unattended Children Policy applies to people who use the meeting rooms. A
group must make provisions for childcare elsewhere if the children will not be part of the
program and are under age 10. Children under age 10 attending the program must remain
in the meeting room unless accompanied by a responsible adult elsewhere in the Library.

20. Any group or person reserving a room who needs to cancel a reservation must do so with
at least 48 hours’ notice to the Library Director or their designee. Failure to give the Library
notice of meeting cancellation may prevent future scheduling of rooms by that group.
Refunds will not be issued to any groups or persons who cancel without giving 48 hours’
notice.

21. The Library reserves the right to deny the use of any meeting room to any organization
that violates this policy.

22. Reservations
Reservations can be made by calling the Business Office at 847-720-3202 between 9:00
a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. Once a date and time is selected,
applicants must complete an application form. Information is available from the Business
Office or online at www.parkridgelibrary.org under “Contact Us”.

a. Not for profits groups may use a meeting room once a month. For profit groups
may use the meeting room once in 3 month period (rolling calendar).

b. Meeting room requests cannot be submitted more than 90 days in advance

c. Applicants must be 18 years of age or older.

d. Meeting room reservations made less than 14 days in advance of the event must
be made in person in the Business Office during regularly scheduled hours. All
fees must be paid at the time of such bookings.

16

http://www.parkridgelibrary.org/


e. Fees that are not paid by the date specified on the reservation confirm may result in
the release of said reservation.

f. Completed applications are reviewed by the Library Director or their designee and
returned to the applicant, with the Meeting Room Application Approval.

23. Meeting Rooms
a. Large Meeting Room (First Floor) = 9084 seated, maximum. If setup consists of a

combination of tables and chairs, the limit is determined by the setup requested.

b. Small Meeting Room (Third Floor) = 20.

c. Attendance at meetings may not exceed the maximum number of people certified by
the Fire Department as the occupancy limit for the room.

d. All rooms have Wi Fi capability

e. Meeting rooms are accessible to the disabled. All meetings must comply with the
current Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the applicant/organization is
responsible for providing qualified interpreters or auxiliary aids to meeting attendees
upon request.

f. Meeting rooms are available during the following hours on days the Library is open.
Monday - Thursday   9:30 a.m. – 8:309:00 p.m. 
Friday   9:30 a.m. – 5:30 6:00 p.m. 
Saturday   9:30 a.m. – 4:305:00 p.m. 
Sunday  12:30 p.m. – 4:305:00 p.m. 

g. The Library has set the following fee schedule for meeting room and equipment use
i. First Floor Meeting Room: $50 for first 3 hours of use. $20 per hour for each

additional hour or portion thereof.

ii. Third Floor Meeting Room: –
a. No charge to nonprofit groups for a maximum of 3 hours.  $10 per

hour for each additional hour or portion thereof. The Library reserves 
the right to require proof of nonprofit status prior to room booking.   

ii.b. $35 for first 3 hours of use by for profit groups. $10 per hour for each
additional hour or portion thereof.

Meetings must begin and end in accordance with regular Library hours. 
Participants must vacate the building when the Library closes. Should a group 
incur any extension of time beyond the closing hour, there will be a charge of 
$25 per quarter hour or any portion thereof. 

iii. Piano and benches: $25
a. The Library cannot guarantee that the piano is in tune.  Piano tuning

by a Library approved vendor is at the meeting organizer's expense 
and must be arranged with Library staff. 

a. To encourage musical programs, the Park Ridge Public Library
provides a piano for use in the first floor, large meeting room. 

b. The Library will tune and maintain the piano on a regular basis. Patrons

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.75", Tab stops:

Not at  0.75"

Commented [JB1]: Language pulled from the Grand 
Piano policy; recommend to incorporate both policies; 
rescind Grand piano policy.  

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Justified, Numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.75", No

widow/orphan control

17



wishing additional tuning of the piano must request this service at least 
two weeks prior to the scheduled program. Piano tuning will be 
performed by a Library approved vendor based on the vendor’s 
availability, at the patron's expense. This bill must be paid prior to the 
program. 

c. Patrons are liable for damage caused through careless or malicious
use of the piano. The cost of the damage will be determined by the 
Library Director. 

iv. Fee for serving food in the first floor meeting room:  $20

Revised February 15, 2022 
Revised May 21, 2013 
Revised August 21, 2012 
Revised May 17, 2011 
Approved May 8, 1979 

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

18



PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY  
APPLICATION FOR USE OF MEETING ROOMS 

Please type or print.  Complete separate form for each date requested. 

1. REQUESTED DATE:

2. REQUESTED TIME:  Start  Finish   Include time for rehearsals, handouts 

 setup, etc.   

3. ESTIMATED ATTENDANCE:

4. TYPE OF MEETING OR PROGRAM:

5. ROOM REQUESTED:  1ST Floor Meeting Room  3RD Floor Meeting Room 

ATTENTION: 
1. NO admission fee shall be charged, or donations collected, for programs presented in the Library.

Programs involving the sale, advertising, or promotion of commercial products or services are
prohibited.

2. Please remember that each room has a room occupancy limit established by the Park Ridge Fire
Department. As the applicant, you are responsible for maintaining this limit. If a Library staff member
believes that there are more people in the room than allowed, you will be asked to do a head count and
will be responsible for seeing that an adequate number of people leave. YOUR EVENT CANNOT
PROCEED UNTIL THE AUDIENCE SIZE IS WITHIN THE FIRE CODE LIMIT.

3. Light refreshments (no major food preparation permitted) may be served in the 1st floor meeting room,
subject to the approval of the Library Director. There is a $20.00 fee, payable in advance, for the
privilege of serving food. – Individual, covered beverages may be brought to the 3rd floor meeting room
however no food or beverages may be served in the 3rd floor meeting room.

4. There is a room use fee, payable in advance, required for use of a meeting room at the Library.  See
Meeting Room Policy for Fee Schedule.

5. The individual and/or organization making this reservation is responsible for ensuring that all presenters
are in compliance with Park Ridge Public Library Meeting Room Policies. Room reservations may NOT
be made for room use by any person other than the individual/organization signing this contract. The
individual signing this contract must be present for the entire meeting. 

6. The room has been reserved for the hours specified by the organization. Access (for organizers and
attendees) to the room will be restricted to those scheduled times. If additional time is necessary for
distribution of handouts, rehearsals, etc. that time should be included in the original room request.

NAME OF ORGANIZATION/BUSINESS: 

NAME OF APPLICANT:  

ADDRESS:  
 (Street) (City)  (State)  ( Zip ) 

PHONE #:  ALT. PHONE #: E-MAIL:

Rev. 03/16 

The meeting room must be 
vacated prior to closing 

19



7. Any organization or group using a meeting room will indemnify and hold harmless the Park Ridge
Public Library for any and all accidents which may be sustained on the premises resulting from the
negligence of the group using the meeting room.

8. Additional equipment may not be brought into the Library without permission from the Library Director.
Such items include but are not limited to additional lighting, risers and sound systems. Signage or
decorations of any kind may not be attached or posted to Library walls or equipment.

9. Any group or person needing to cancel a reservation must do so with at least 48 hours notice to the
Library. REFUNDS WILL NOT BE GIVEN FOR CANCELLED RESERVATIONS.

As the applicant, I agree to arrive before the approved time and will insure that any attendees will be suitably 
supervised during the program/event.  

I hereby acknowledge that I have read and received a copy of the Park Ridge Public Library Meeting 
Room Policy and agree to comply with all of the provisions contained therein. Failure to comply with 
any of the provisions of the meeting room policy may prohibit future use of the meeting rooms. 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE: ____________________________________ DATE: ______________________ 

FIRST FLOOR MEETING ROOM ARRANGEMENT (Choose a room setup below) 

PRESENTATION/RECITAL SETUP  CLASSROOM w/TABLES SEATED WITH TABLES 

Maximum 90 seated with tables, classroom style With tables/chairs both sides of tables 

Chairs Chairs Chairs  
 Quantity  Quantity  Quantity  

 (Maximum 90 seated) (Maximum 48 seated) (Maximum 75 seated) 

Tables (8’) Tables (8’) 
 Quantity Quantity  
(Maximum 9) (Maximum 9) 

 Additional Tables (8’) maximum 3 (Speaker’s table, Handouts, Refreshments) Qty 

FIRST FLOOR EQUIPMENT NEEDED:  (Check all equipment required) 

We plan to serve food items ($20 fee) including (provide details about refreshments/menu here): 

CD Player  ($20 fee) DVD  ($20 fee) VCR ($20 fee) 

X 

Rev. 03/16 

20



FIRST FLOOR EQUIPMENT NEEDED continued:  (Check all equipment required) 

 THIRD FLOOR ROOM ARRANGEMENT (Maximum capacity 20) 
20 chairs at Board table     

THIRD FLOOR EQUIPMENT NEEDED: (Check all equipment required) 

Chairs 
Quantity  (maximum 20) 

LCD Projector for connection to 
users laptop for PowerPoint, 
Publisher etc. presentation  
(PC & Mac compatible) ($20 fee) 

Wireless connection  
(user will provide own laptop with 
wireless capability. PC & Mac) 

Easel DVD Player ($20 fee) CD Player 

Screen White Board/Flip Chart Overhead Projector for 
transparencies 

*********************************************** FOR LIBRARY USE ONLY ********************************************** 

DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED: Date:                  By: 

APPLICATION APPROVED: Yes:   No:    Remarks: 

REQUEST TO SERVE FOOD APPROVED:  Yes:  No:  Remarks: 

1. ROOM-USE FEE PAID:   Cash  Check  # Amount 
Date 

2. USE OF EQUIPMENT &/OR SERVING FOOD: PAYMENT REC’D:  Cash  Check  # 
Date 

SIGNATURE  DATE: 
Library Director 

RETURN TO: PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY  

BUSINESS OFFICE, 20 SOUTH PROSPECT AVE., PARK RIDGE, ILLINOIS 60068 
PHONE  (847) 825-3123 ** FAX  (847) 825-0001  

Piano, Grand ($25 fee) 
Two benches 

Projection System for connection to 
user’s laptop for PowerPoint, 
Publisher (etc.) presentation  
(PC & Mac compatible) ($20 fee) 

Tables   (Quantity?) 

rectangular 

card size   

8-foot

Projection Cart White Board/Flip Chart Podium/Lectern 

Screen, ceiling mounted Extension Cord(s) Easel 

Overhead Projector for 
transparencies 

  Microphone 

  hand-held    stand   lapel 

  Wireless connection (User will 
provide own laptop with 
wireless capability, PC & Mac) 

Rev. 03/16 

21



GRAND PIANO 

POLICY: 

To encourage musical programs, the Park Ridge Public Library provides a piano for use 
in the first floor, large meeting room. 

RULES: 

1. Patrons wishing to use the piano must schedule the meeting room according to the
Library's Meeting Room policy.

2. The Library will tune and maintain the piano on a regular basis. Patrons wishing
additional tuning of the piano must request this service at least two weeks prior to the
scheduled program. Piano tuning will be performed by a Library approved vendor at
the patron's expense. This bill must be paid prior to the program.

3. Patrons are liable for damage caused through careless or malicious use of the piano.
The cost of the damage will be determined by the Library Director.

Revised April 19, 2022 
Reviewed May 18, 2010 
Approved January 17, 1989 

22



12 of 12 months; 99% of total budget

REVENUE ACCOUNTS BUDGET REVISED BUDGET YTD ACTUAL % RECEIVED

Local Government Taxes $4,088,661 $3,342,542 82%

Per Capita State Grant $55,283 $58,493 106%

COVID Related $0 $11,045 100%

Other Receipts $61,333 $75,534 123%

Total Revenue $4,205,277 $3,487,614 83%

ACCOUNT # OPERATING ACCOUNTS BUDGET REVISED BUDGET YTD EXPENDITURES % SPENT NOTES

9100 Salaries $2,379,103 $2,358,998 $2,178,062 92% Fill open positions

9210 Employee Benefits $355,169 $375,169 $351,508 94%

9317 Data Processing $257,000 $265,000 $249,199 94% CVI quarterly payment

9321 Building Maintenance $187,500 $193,772 $164,154 85%

9324 Membership, Recruiting, Training $28,500 $30,750 $15,251 50% Includes tuition reimbursement

9351 Equipment Rental $32,000 $32,000 $17,835 56% Copier lease; Postage lease

9359 Consulting Services $37,000 $28,800 $9,000 31%

9360 Public Relations $34,600 $50,850 $49,894 98%

9385 General Contractual $77,600 $76,800 $68,465 89% Includes Bibilotheca Invoice 

9385 Contractual Programs $61,500 $61,500 $54,803 89%

9416 Audit $9,000 $9,000 $8,700 97%

9425 Special Counsel $25,000 $19,800 $12,020 61%

9510 Supplies $117,000 $114,200 $83,421 73%

9511 Staff Appreciation $2,000 $2,000 $1,981 99%

9520 Computer Materials $30,000 $30,000 $20,289 68%

9540 Library Resources $626,000 $626,000 $585,286 93%

Total Operating Budget $4,258,972 $4,274,639 $3,869,868 91%

Capital Projects Budget

9901 Machinery and Equipment $0 $0 $0 0%

9908 Computer Equipment $22,500 $27,500 $27,202 99% Firewall Subscription

9963 Building Repairs $275,000 $605,985 $199,240 33%

Carry Forward for Ice Melt System, 

Phone System, Replacement PA and 

Remainder of funds originally 

allocated for Fire Suppression 

Total Capital Projects Budget $297,500 $633,485 $226,441 36%

Total Operating Budget $4,556,472 $4,908,124 $4,096,310 83%

LIBRARY SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (351,195) (702,847) (608,696) 

RESTRICTIONS ORIGINAL INCREASE/DECREASE TOTAL

Capital Facility Restrictions $250,000 $199,240.00 $50,760.00

Technology Restrictions $150,000 $27,202 $122,798

TOTAL RESTRICTIONS $400,000 $226,442 $173,558

Park Ridge Public Library

Consolidated YTD Revenue and Expenditures

Calendar Year 2022 - January, 2022 through December, 2022

Property Tax 

Property Tax 

Property Tax 

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

 4,500,000

Period
13/SY21

Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22

Library Fund
Revenue and Expense

Revenue

YTD Expense

Expense

Return to Agenda

23



Park Ridge Public Library - Secretary’s Report 
January 17, 2023 

PRPL Web Site News Items 

 Winter Reading Club kicks off December 21 - General News - News | Park Ridge Library
December 20, 2022

 New year, new reading goal? - General News - News | Park Ridge Library  January 6, 2023

 VIRTUAL Author Talk: Midwest Baking with Shauna Sever - LibCal - Park Ridge Public Library

Press Articles 

 Park Ridge Library Hosts Kids New Years Party - Journal & Topics Media Group (journal-
topics.com)  January 3, 2023

 Classic Films host hopes to continue series [Corrected 01/09/2023] - Chicago Tribune - ProQuest

 Park Ridge has approved its 2023 budget; here’s what you need to know - Chicago Tribune -
ProQuest  December 28, 2022

Return to Agenda

24

https://www.parkridgelibrary.org/winter-reading-club-kicks-off-december-21/
https://www.parkridgelibrary.org/new-year-new-reading-goal-/
https://parkridgelibrary.libcal.com/event/9929269
https://www.journal-topics.com/articles/park-ridge-library-hosts-kids-new-years-party/
https://www.journal-topics.com/articles/park-ridge-library-hosts-kids-new-years-party/
https://www.proquest.com/chicagotribune/docview/2761598782/79677314E23D4697PQ/2?accountid=32494
https://www.proquest.com/chicagotribune/docview/2758700834/79677314E23D4697PQ/6?accountid=32494
https://www.proquest.com/chicagotribune/docview/2758700834/79677314E23D4697PQ/6?accountid=32494


TO: Library Board of Trustees 
FROM: Joanna Bertucci, Library Director 
DATE: January 12, 2023 
SUBJECT: Library Director’s Report  

Administration & Board 

 The Library’s Live and Learn Grant application was submitted to the Illinois State Library on December 21,
2022.

 The Library’s annual certification was updated and filed with the Illinois State Library on January 4, 2023.

 Ms. Doubek updated the filer list for the May 2023 Cook County Statement of Economic Interest Filing.
Trustees, the Library Director, and department managers are required to file a statement with Cook
County.

 I attended the CCS Governing Board meeting on January 11.  The Governing Board voted unanimously to
allow Mount Prospect Public Library to join the CCS consortium, effective November 1, 2023.  Mount
Prospect will add an additional 34,000 patrons, 417,000 physical items, and 83,000 e-content titles to our
database.  Estimated go live date is September 2024.

 The Library received one FOIA request in December 2022:
o December 8, 2022: Any and all electronic communication (email or text) sent to or between the

following people: Yourself (Joanna Bertucci), Staci Greenwald, Laura Scott and, any and all
members of the board of Trustees that contain the following keywords: Flamer, Gender Queer, Let’s
Talk About It, This Book is Gay, District 64, District 207, sent between June 1, 2022 and the present.

 Requestor: Ms. Caroline Kubzansky, Chicago Tribune

Staff Updates and Professional Development: 

 We welcomed one new staff member in December. Juan Vega joined our Facilities team as a building
monitor/custodian and has been working with John and his team.

Winter Reading Club: 

Winter Reading Club officially began on December 21 for all ages!  Our Artic Fox 
mascot has been very popular with our younger patrons.  Kids and teens who read for 20 
days earn a prize book and raffle ticket.  Kids and teens who read for an additional 20 
days earn another raffle ticket.  Adult patrons are working toward their reading goal as 
well as the challenge goals.  The challenge goals encourage adults to attend a program, 
refer a friend to WRC, attend a Studio or Media Lab orientation, or enter a book review 
in Beanstack. Sign Ups as of January 12, 2023 

Adult 189 

Kids 323 

Teens   59 

Return to Agenda

25



Strategic Plan Progress: 

 Encourage individual growth and lifelong learning

o The Reader Services team provided 247 books to 31 community book clubs in December 2022.

o Adult Services Staff are in the midst of curating our first Tiny Art Show. 100 adult patrons picked up
their mini canvas and supplies in early January.  Participants’ art will be displayed in our second
floor display case starting January 13.

 Build up a strong workforce and local businesses

o No activities this month

 Align with strategy and set the stage for development

o No activities for this month

 Develop Civic Education for an informed and engaged citizenry.

o The Library supported the Ukraine Medical Association of North America collection for new and
clean, gently used blankets, quilts, comforters and sleeping bags for Ukraine through January 12.
The Library collected over 40 bags of items in 2 weeks.

Finance and HR: 

 The Business Office and the Acquisitions team are monitoring budget lines as we move into period 13 of
FY22.

o The Period 12 Consolidated YTD report reflects 91% of the operating budget expended.  We except
to see that percentage increase as the Business Office is closing period 13 and issuing checks on
January 13, 2022.

o The capital projects line was 36% expended as the building repairs line includes the reminder of
funds allocated to the completed fire suppression project.

o At the February COW Ms. Doubek will present the proposed carry forwards for the FY23 budget.
The file server, email migration, sound attenuation, and masonry wall project were not completed
by December 31, 2022.

 Finance Manager, Alyson Doubek has spent the past three weeks working diligently with ADP on our first
payroll run for the 12/25 – 1/7 pay period.  We processed our first payroll on Wednesday, January 11 for
our January 13 payday. Our first payroll was a success!  ADP is continuing to make tweaks on the back end
and helping us navigate payroll reports.  We will continue to work closely with ADP for the next two payroll
cycles to ensure that any issues are resolved in a timely manner.

 As of 9/30/22, the Balance in the Bruce A. Michel Trust is $205,953.

 City of Park Ridge Finance Director Chris Lipman confirmed that the 2023 IMRF employer contribution rate
is 1.44% for all eligible employees.

● The Library initiated the following budget transfers in December:
o Youth Services Fiction to Nonfiction for $2,000
o Conferences and Training to PR Newsletter for $2,250
o Employee Benefits HMO to PPO for $13,000
o Admin Salaries to PPO for $20,000
o General Counsel to Database for $3,200
o Consulting to Database for $3,200
o Conferences and Training to Postage for $500
o Building Repairs to Computer Equipment for $1,000

26



Building and Grounds: 

 Facility Manager, John Priala, and I met with Andy Dogan on January 11 to discuss the next group of
projects as per the capital needs assessment.  Mr. Dogan has suggested that the Library order an
assessment of the building envelope, including windows, trim, columns, and the rooftop cupola to be able
to direct an exact scope of work and determine if any conditions have changed since the October 2021
Capital Reserve report analysis.

 The Library hosted a pre-construction meeting with representatives from LZ Design Build and Andrew Jose
of Green Associates on January 13.  Sound attenuation work in the second floor study rooms is scheduled
to begin Monday, January 16 and last two weeks. The Children’s room phase will begin mid to end of
February as the acoustic panels are still on-order.

Partnerships, Outreach and Advocacy 
● We are continuing to serve patrons in ways that are most comfortable for them. Volunteers delivered 84

items to 20 homebound patrons in December.   Patron Services staff made 8 (29 items) additional deliveries
to patrons this month.

 In preparation for Winter Reading Club, Middle & High School Coordinator, Maddie McGuire interacted
with over 1,500 students during her 38 school visits to promote participation in this year’s club.  Preschool
Coordinator, Liz Fichter, and Elementary School Coordinator, Catherine Dudley, conducted 14 school visits,
interacting with over 330 students, combined.

Marketing/Public Relations: 

 The e-newsletter continues to do well with cardholders. Our overall open rate for all emails is 53%

 We launched our drip campaign to new cardholders on December 29 that is scheduled to send an automated
message every 7 days starting 14 days after a cardholder signed up, with a different message each week
spotlighting services, downloadable offerings, programs and events.

o Our open rate on the first message sent was 74%. Unsubscribe rates have consistently been less than
1%.

 Instagram update: 
 We have merged our Kids, Teens and general

library Instagram account with much success. We
stopped posting to the Kids and Teens pages on
December 1 and will begin reaching out via direct
message to anyone who hasn’t started following
the renamed library account, @parkridgelibrary
(formerly @prpl1913) in January.

 Statistics post merge:

o We have reached 94.8% more accounts
in the last 30 days as of January 10, 2023
compared to the previous 30 days (November 11-December 10, 2022).

o We have engaged with 69.8% more accounts in that same 30-day comparison, which includes shares
and replies. Our content interaction is up 105% in the past 30 days.

 Ms. Healy completed a new Communications and Style Guide for the library.  This will be shared with staff at
our January training day.  Additionally, this has been shared with our account manager at Weblinx (website
vendor).

27



Notable Programs and Services: 

 December’s passive program in the Children’s Department
featured an I Spy scavenger hunt that had children and their caregivers
looking for plush versions of some of their favorite book characters.
Over 700 completed sheets were turned in!

 In addition to our Winter and Summer Reading Clubs,
the Youth Services Department offers 5 ongoing
reading programs for kids and teens.  2022 saw the
reboot of the patch club with We Read Together and
Reading Adventure programs for emerging and
independent readers.  For teens, the department
launched 100 Books Before Graduation for middle
school and high school students.  We are gratified to
see almost 300 kids reading all year long with the
library.

 The Youth Services department distributed approximately 600 kits and projects for kids and teens in
December.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Joanna Bertucci 
January 13, 2023 

Club Participants 

Growing Book by Book 84 

We Read Together (patch club) 92 

Reading Adventure (patch club) 44 

100 Books Before 8th Grade Grad 54 

100 Books Before HS Grad 10 

 16 patron orientations  12 patron orientations

 8 classes with 22 total attendees  4 classes with 6 total attendees

 22 user sessions (35 hours of use)  35 user sessions (87 hours of use)

28



2022

Dec-22 Nov-22 YTD 2021 YTD 2020 YTD 2019 YTD % Change 

2019 to 2022

Analysis  

CIRCULATION OVERVIEW
Physical items 48,529   50,716           636,413    568,281   400,688    773,489      -18%
Digital items 9,505     9,133 119,632    123,150   125,138    87,840         36%

TOTAL 58,034   59,849           756,045    691,431   525,826    861,329      -12%
PROGRAMS

Adult Programs 10           18 206            144           146           253 -19%
Adult Attendees 299        608 6,002         5,621       3,618        4,026           49%
Youth Programs 37           47 529            390           330           424 25%
Youth Attendees 909        1,061 11,183      5,793       8,057        14,513         -23%

OUTREACH
School Loans 20           23 164            129           79 289 -43%
Items loaned to Schools 535        446 4,627         3,991       1,988        6,188           -25%
Homebound Patrons served 20           18 227            238           168           205 11%
Homebound Materials loaned 84           63 957            1,087       973           1,116           -14%
Book clubs served 31           46 498            441           300           501 -1%
Items loaned to book clubs 247        398 4,290         3,786       2,655        4,560           -6%

TECHNOLOGY
Wi-Fi Sessions -         43,893           500,528    375,463   149,883    1,092,072   -54%
Wi-Fi - unique clients -         1,675 14,095      10,225     9,031        - 
Public PC Sessions 921        1,129 12,095      5,592       5,916        23,710         -49%

WEBSITE
Visits 15,354   16,476           206,372    230,894   234,769    217,366      -5%
Unique users 7,580     8,686 101,488    109,129   104,741    107,020      -5%

USERS
New cards issued 131        134 2,235         1,857       544           2,215           1% Number of new cards issued now exceeds prior years 
Total PRPL cardholders 18,597   18,656           18,597      19,021     23,203      24,332         -24% Total number of cardholders down from 2019 levels. 
Unique users 4,022     4,280 4,022         3,801       1,849        3,576           12% There were 12% more unique card users this month than was the case in 

December, 2019 and # of unique users exceeds that of prior years 
Door count 17,360   20,814           236,455    132,251   84,661      259,869      -9% Current door counts are less than pre-pandemic levels but significantly higher 

than prior year.  
PATRON SERVICES

Contact free pick up items 2             6 895            3,884       -77% This service continues to provide access to those most comfortable with contact 

free usage.  

Cardholders* 47% 48% 62% 65% Percentage decline in cardholders since 2019 reflects both pandemic impacts 

and population increase resulting from 2020 census.   

NOTES:
YTD Comparisons are made to 2019 as that was the most recent year when services were not impacted by COVID-19
SY21 Population 39,656 (2020 Census); FY20 and FY21 Population 37,479 (2010 Census)
FY20 and FY21 numbers have been adjusted to be compared to the 8-month (May - Dec.) SY21
City of Park Ridge, 2020 Census 39,656           
City of Park Ridge, 2010 Census 37,479           

Both Wi-Fi and public PC usage have significantly increased from prior year but 

remain below pre-COVID levels.   

Website usage remains lower than prior years.  

December

Physical circulation is trending upward from 2021 but remains lower than 2019.  

Digital circulation continues to far exceed pre-COVID levels.   

Attendance at Adult programming is 49% higher than in 2019.  The combination 

of live and virtual programming appeals to adult patrons.   Youth program 

attendance in 2022 is almost double that of 2021 but remains less than 2019.  

Loans to schools now exceed prior year. Number of loans and items loaned yet 

to reach 2019 levels.   
Number of homebound patrons served exceeds 2019. This provides access to 

those who would not have access to print materials.
Book clubs represent a significant user demographic and support of these 

groups has returned to 2019 levels. 

Return to Agenda

29



Park Ridge Public Library 
Personnel Report 
December, 2022 

Appointments: The following personnel have been appointed to positions as noted below: 

- Juan Vega, Facilities, Custodian Substitute, Part-Time

Departures: The following personnel have left the Library as noted below: 

- Gerard Deignan, Facilities, Custodian, Part-Time

Changes in Status: The following personnel have had changes to their position as noted below: 

- None

30



December 2022 Report 

 Held 2022 Annual Meeting

 Approved 2023 Wish List for $15,000

 Reported Spring Book Drive with Scouts for delivery on March 18

Return to Agenda

31



Memorandum 

Memo Date: 
From: 
Meeting Type: 
Meeting Date: 
Action Requested: 
Subject:  

January 4, 2023 
Alexandrea Hanba, Board President 
Planning & Operations Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 10, 2023 
For review and approval  
Bylaws review  

Background:  
The Library Board’s Bylaws were reviewed in March 2022.  Minor edits were made including reordering the order of 
business for regular meetings and adding the time frame for posting agendas as per the Illinois Open Meetings Act.   

At this time, I respectfully recommend that the Board add language regarding the attendance requirement for Library 
Trustees (as set forth in City of Park Ridge Ordinance No. 2018-16) to the preface paragraph that lays out the rules for 
composition and requirements for Library Trustees. 

Recommended Action: 
1) Based on discussion and possible updates at the January 10, 2023 meeting, I respectfully recommend

that the Board approve revisions to the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees Park Ridge Public Library.1

1 Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting by two-thirds affirmative vote of the members present and voting; 
a roll call vote is required and therefore any updates to the Bylaws will be considered new business on the agenda. 

Update from the January 10 COW Discussion:   Questions were raised regarding the inclusion of the rules for remote 
meeting participation and the statement of economic interest filing.  The Board has a separate policy for remote 
attendance and the annual financial filing is listed in the Trustee orientation policy, both are included for reference in 
the packet.

I concur with President Hanba's initial recommendation for edits to the Bylaws.

Return to Agenda

32



1 

BYLAWS 
OF 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

PARK RIDGE, ILLINOIS 
Revised, May 15, 2012 
Revised, May 17, 2016 

Revised, August 16, 2016 
Revised, March 15, 2022

PREFACE 

The Board of Trustees is composed of nine (9) members, each of whom holds office for three (3) 
years from the first of July of the year of appointment and until a successor is appointed. The Mayor 
appoints three (3) Trustees each year before the first of July to take the place of Trustees whose   
terms expire. Vacancies on the Board occasioned by removal, resignation, or other-wise are reported 
to the Mayor, and the unexpired term is filled in a like manner as original appointments. Trustees must
reside in the City of Park Ridge. Trustees are required to attend 75% of all meetings as per City 
of Park Ridge Ordinance. No. 2018-16. 

Park Ridge Public Library Trustees may not profit from personal or business special privilege or 
enrichment arising out of the position occupied. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Illinois Revised Statutes pertaining to Public Libraries, the following 
Bylaws are established for the guidance of the Board of Trustees and for the government of the Park 
Ridge Public Library. 

ARTICLE I 

OBJECT 

The object of the Board of Trustees shall be to develop a library in terms of books and other library 
resources, building and personnel that meets the highest standards according to the needs of the 
community, and professional standards, including the Illinois Library Association Standards for Public 
Libraries. To this end, the Board shall: 

1. Establish and support Library policies.
2. Employ a qualified library director who shall be responsible for hiring, directing, supervising

and disciplining all Library staff.
3. Evaluate and set goals for the Library Director annually.
4. Insure appropriate personnel policies and procedures exist including those for hiring,

managing and terminating employees.
5. Secure adequate funds.
6. Approve expenditure of Library funds.
7. Receive gifts to the Library.
8. Provide and maintain adequate facilities and up-to-date technology.
9. Insure a representative selection of books and other library resources.

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

33

https://library.municode.com/il/park_ridge/ordinances/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=895236


2 

10. Participate actively in cooperative efforts to improve local library services.

34



3 

ARTICLE II 

OFFICERS 

Section 1. The officers of the Board shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, 
each of whom shall serve for a term of one (1) year. 

Section 2.    The President shall preside at all meetings, appoint all committees with the approval of the 
Board, authorize calls for special meetings, and generally perform the duties of a 
presiding officer.  

Section 3.   The Vice-President shall act for the President in the latter's absence and shall have such 
other duties and responsibilities as the Board may determine. 

Section 4.   The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all Board meetings including closed sessions, shall 
issue notices of all regular meetings and of special meetings upon proper authorization, 
shall have custody of the minutes and other records of the Board not specifically 
assigned to other officers, shall share communications that are received by the Library 
and shall notify the Mayor of any vacancies occurring on the Board. Library staff support 
the Secretary at the Secretary’s discretion. 

Section 5. The Treasurer shall maintain an accounting of all library funds and shall arrange for payment 
of expenses and obligations as authorized by the Board, shall make a financial report 
at each regular meeting, and shall furnish such information as may be requested by the 
Board or any appropriate committee. 

Section 6.  The President shall appoint a nominating committee of three (3) members of the Board 
at the June meeting. Such committee shall present its recommendations at the July 
meeting, listing the names of one or more candidates for each office, provided the 
consent of such candidates shall have been obtained. Additional nominations may be 
made from the floor with the consent of the nominee(s). 

Section 7.    At the July meeting, the highest ranking officer present from among the previous officers 
shall call the meeting to order. The Board shall then elect a Chairman pro tem who shall 
conduct the roll call and election of officers. The terms of newly elected officers shall 
begin immediately after the election. 

Section 8.     No trustee shall hold more than one office at any one time, and no officer shall serve more 
than two consecutive terms in the same office. If an officer has served more than three-
quarters of a term, that officer shall be considered as having served that term. 

ARTICLE III 

MEETINGS 

Section 1. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly at a fixed time and date determined 
in advance each year by the Board and recorded in the minutes. Changes in the time 
and date for future meetings may be made at any regular or special meeting of the Board. 

Section 2. Five members shall constitute a quorum. 

35



4 

Section 3. Special meetings may be called by the President, or upon written request of three (3) 
members. At special meetings only such matters of business may be transacted as are 
stated in the call for the special meeting. 

Section 4.   Notice of all regular and special meetings shall be posted in the Library, on the Library’s 
website, and communicated to each member of the Board, at least forty eightforty-eight 
(48) hours before the date of the meeting.

Section 5. The order of business at regular meetings shall be as follows: 

1. Call to order
2. Roll call
3. Comments from the General Public (Non-agenda items)
4. Consent Agenda which includes Minutes of previous meeting
5. Treasurer’s Report
6. President’s Report
7. Secretary's report
8. Library Director’s Report
9. Friends of the Library Report

10. Unfinished business
11. New business
12. Adjournment

Section 6. The Annual Report shall be presented by  theby the Secretary to the Library Board 
for approval and  subsequently transmitted to the City Council. It shall contain: 

1. An itemized statement of the various sums of money received from the Library Fund
and from other sources.

2. An itemized statement of the objects and purposes for which those sums of money
have been expended.

3. A statement of the number of books, periodicals, and other resources available for
use and the number and character thereof circulated.

4. A statement of the real and personal property acquired by devise, bequest, purchase,
gift or otherwise.

5. A statement of the character of any extensions of library service which have been
undertaken.

6. A statement of the financial requirements of the Library for the ensuing fiscal year for
inclusion in the appropriation of the corporate authority, and of the amount of money
which, in the judgment of the Board of Library Trustees, it will be necessary to levy
for library purposes in the next annual tax levy ordinance.

7. A statement as to the amount of accumulation and the reasons therefore.
8. A statement as to any outstanding liabilities including those for bonds still outstanding

or amounts due for judgment, settlement, liability insurance, or for amounts due
under a certificate of the board.

9. Any other statistics, information, and suggestions that may be of interest.

ARTICLE IV 

COMMITTEES 

Section 1. There shall be such regular and special committees as may be determined by the 
Board from time to time. 

36



5 

Section 2. The duties of the following regular standing committees shall be: 

1. Budget and Finance Committee – a Committee of the Whole – in conjunction with
the Library Director shall prepare the annual budget for the approval of the Board.

2. Planning and Operations Committee – a Committee of the Whole – prepare annually
a revised long range plan; review policies and oversee operation of the Library to
insure excellent service with maximum efficiency.

3. Communications and Development Committee – a Committee of the Whole –
exercise responsibility for public relations; maintain Library Endowment Fund;
investigate opportunities for fund raising and for building community support.

4. Personnel Committee – a Committee of the Whole – meet as needed to evaluate the
Library Director, set goals and exercise responsibility for matters affecting         
employees of the Library.

5. Building and Grounds Committee – a Committee of the Whole – exercise
responsibility for the proper maintenance of building and grounds, and make
recommendations to the Board on any major expenditures.

6. Library Resources Committee – a Committee of the Whole – exercise responsibility
for recommending to the Board policies governing the selection and availability of
library resources and periodically reviews the collection development guidelines and
allocation of funds for library resources

ARTICLE V 

DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 

Section 1. Payment of warrants shall be made in accordance with the Library’s Policy on “Payment 
for Goods and Services” within the limits of the Board approved budget for each fiscal 
year. 

Section 2.  Payment of individual warrants over $5,000.00 shall be approved by the Treasurer, or in 
the Treasurer's absence the Secretary. 

ARTICLE VI 

GIFTS AND ENDOWMENT FUND 

Section 1. A permanent fund, known as the Park Ridge Public Library Endowment Fund shall be 
established and maintained by the Board of Trustees of the Park Ridge Library. All gifts 
and bequests, unless otherwise designated, shall be placed in this fund. 

Section 2. A special permanent fund, known as the Park Ridge Public Library Restricted Gift Fund shall 
be maintained by the Board of Trustees of the Park Ridge Public Library. Gifts and 
bequests which are restricted or specially designated shall be placed in this fund until 
their purposes shall be fulfilled. 

Section 3.  All gifts, grants, and/or bequests to the Library shall be accepted, held invested, used, or 
disposed of at the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees. Disbursements from the 
above Endowment, Restricted Gift Funds, or special grant, gift or bequest allocations 
shall only be made with Board approval. 

37



6 

ARTICLE VII 

ADMINISTRATION 

Section 1.     The Library Director shall implement the policies adopted by the Board. Among the Library 
Director's duties and responsibilities shall be that of hiring personnel, directing, 
supervising and disciplining of all staff members. The Director will notify the Board of all 
personnel decisions involving hiring and termination at the next regularly scheduled 
Board meeting. The Director will submit to the Board monthly and annual reports as 
required by the Board, recommending such policies and procedures as will promote the 
efficiency and service of the Library to the people of the community. 

Section 2. The Board shall make and adopt such rules and regulations for the operation and government 
of the Library as will promote the proper and efficient use of the facilities. 

Section 3.   The Board may exclude from the use of the Library any persons who willfully violate the 
posted rules. Such persons may be liable to further penalties as prescribed by City 
ordinances. 

Section 4.  The Board may extend the privileges and use of the Library to persons residing outside 
of the City of Park Ridge upon such conditions and terms as do not conflict with City 
ordinances. 

ARTICLE VIII 

PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

The rules contained in "Robert's Rules of Order Revised" shall govern the Board in all cases to which 
they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws. 

ARTICLE IX 

AMENDMENTS 

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting by two-thirds affirmative vote of the members 
present and voting, provided that notice of the proposed amendment was stated in the call for the 
meeting. 

38



MEETING ATTENDANCE VIA ELECTRONIC MEANS 

POLICY: 

Library Trustees are permitted to attend open meetings via electronic means, including 
audio or video conference in compliance with the rules of 5 ILCS 120/1.02 

RULES: 

1. A Trustee wishing to attend by electronic means shall give notice to the Library
Director or designee stating the reason for their inability to physically attend the
scheduled meeting.

2. The approved reasons for attending by electronic means are:
a. Personal illness or disability
b. Employment purposes or business of the public body
c. A family or other emergency

3. A quorum of the Board of Trustees or Committee must be physically present
throughout the scheduled meeting.

4. The Trustee presiding at the meeting shall announce the name of the Trustee(s)
wishing to attend by electronic means and the qualifying reason before the roll is
taken.

5. After the roll of physically present Trustees is taken and the meeting is called to order,
a motion must be approved by a majority of the present Trustees to allow the absent
Trustee(s) to participate by electronic means.

6. The voice of the Trustee(s) attending electronically will be broadcast to the public and
the Trustee(s) attending electronically shall be able to hear the discussions of the
other Trustees and the public.

7. Trustees participating by electronic means are afforded all of the same rights as
Board members who are physically present as well as being held to the same laws,
standards of conduct, Robert’s Rules of Order and voting procedures.

8. Trustees participating by electronic means may participate in closed session and
should make a reasonable and good faith effort to participate from a location where
they cannot be overheard by non-Trustees.

9. The Secretary will record in the meeting minutes the names of those members who
are physically present and those attending electronically, in addition to recording the
motion and vote of the physically present Trustees that allowed the Trustee(s) to
attend the meeting electronically.

Revised December 21, 2021 
Revised December 19, 2017 
Revised July 19, 2016 
Approved October 19, 2011 

39

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=84&ChapterID=2


LIBRARY TRUSTEE ORIENTATION 

An orientation will be provided for each new trustee that is appointed to the Library Board. The 
goal of the orientation process is to help new trustees be well informed and to provide them with 
the information they need to become involved early in their tenure. The orientation will include 
several meetings with the Board and staff as well as written materials. 

 An orientation with the President of the Library Board of Trustees and the Library Director will 
cover the following: 

 Structure of Library Board

 Relationship of the Library to City government and elected officials

 Roles and responsibilities of Library Trustees

 Meeting structure, schedule, rules of order and preparation for meetings

 Board Committees

 Open Meetings Act: mandatory training and use of e-mail

 Library funding, budget and expenditures

 Tour and staff introductions

 Roles and responsibilities of Library Director and staff

 Friends of the Library

 Computer Cooperative Services and RAILS

 Required Statement of Economic Interest filing

Printed materials will be provided with more information: 

 Policy and Procedures Manual – including By-Laws and Collection Management
Guidelines

 Open Meetings Act handout

 Trustee Facts File, most recent edition, Illinois Library Association

 Serving our Public: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries, most recent edition, Illinois
Library Association

 Annual Report

 Strategic Plan

 Annual Calendar

 List of Library Trustees including contact information

At the first Board Meeting the new trustee attends, each trustee will introduce themselves and tell 
a little about their background, years on the Board, etc. so they can get to know their colleagues 
on the Board. 

Follow up meeting(s) with individual Board Officers can provide information on the specific roles 
of each officer and more detail on the role of Library Trustee, as requested.  

Revised March 15, 2022 
Reviewed May 18, 2010 
Approved: March 21, 2006 

40



Return to Agenda

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Return to Agenda

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63


	Binder2.pdf
	1. Board Agenda_01_17_23

	Binder1.pdf
	2.12.20.22 Board minutes - draft
	3. CashStatement_December22
	4. Ratification_Dec22_NoChecksWritten
	5.  MEMO_Michel Trust disbursement request
	5.1 Michel Trust request letter
	5.2 Quote 202492
	6. Policy Review_January 2023
	6.1 Meeting Rooms_redline to AH DT
	6.2 Meeting Room Application
	6.3  Grand piano_clean
	7. ConsolidatedYTDRevenueandExpenditures_December_cor
	8. 17.23 Board Secretary Report
	9. Directors report January 2023
	9.1 FY22 Stat Sheet_Board Reporting
	9.2 PersonnelReport_December22
	10. FOL REPORT_Jan packet
	11.0 Bylaws Review memo_January 2023
	11.1 Bylaws Redline
	11.2 Meeting Attendance via Electronic Means
	12. WarrantTotals_12162023
	13. WarrantTotals_12312023




